
 

 

  
          

         LOWER MOUNT BETHEL TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 3, 2025 @ 7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER The November 3, 2025, meeting of the Lower Mount Bethel Township Board 
of Supervisors was held at 6984 S. Delaware Drive, Martins Creek, Pennsylvania. The 
November 3, 2025, meeting of the Lower Mount Bethel Township Board of Supervisors was 
held at 6984 S. Delaware Drive, Martins Creek, Pennsylvania. The meeting was called to order 
by Chairperson DeBerardinis at 7:00 p.m. Also in attendance were S. Disidore, C. Cook,                   
J. Mauser (zoom), D. Ascani, C. Briglia, Twp. Engineer, Bigg-Sebia, Township Solicitor, M. Hart, 
and M. Mastrogiovanni. There were approximately 25 members of the audience present. The 
Pledge of Allegiance was recited.    
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 20, 2025.  MOTION by J. Mauser, second by C. Cook to 
approve the minutes as submitted.  Vote: 5-0.   

 
COURTESY OF THE FLOOR – None. 

SUBDIVISIONS / ZONING  

1.  Public Hearing - Sanczel Conditional Use Application.  Steven Mack, court stenographer was 
present. A full transcript of the proceeding will be completed of the hearing.  

 
K. Bigg-Sebia opened up the Public Hearing at 7:10 p.m. Solicitor Biggs noted the applicant is seeking 
approval of Conditional Use for Short Term Lodging with the following waivers requested  ZO 27-1705-
3.B and ZO 27-1705.1.0. Solicitor Biggs gave background information as follows: The application was 
presented to the Planning Commission on July 15 , 2025 and then again on September 16 , 2025.  The 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the Sanczel Conditional Use Application and 
requested waivers to be sent to the Board of Supervisors based upon the Township Engineers review 
letter.  Solicitor Biggs noted the burden of proof is on the application to demonstrate that the 
proposed conditional use complies with the standards and criteria set forth in the township zoning 
ordinance for that use.   The court stenographer sworn in all parties that will be to testifying.  A-1 -      
M. Mastrogiovanni, Township Secretary testified public notice was properly advertised.  
 
S. Sanczel testified and explained the information relating to his short term rental and reviewed the 
waivers he is seeking.  Mr. Sanczel reviewed T-8 – updated maps, drawings, and parking spaces. Next 
there was a review of T-4 – application, floor plan and photos. Sean indicated there is only one 
bedroom, with a hideaway sleep sofa on the first level. They only allow 2-4 people to occupy at a time. 
Mr. Sanczel then explained they have insurance through Air b & b, they pay all state and local 
occupancy taxes.      
 
Solicitor Biggs submitted A-1 – LMBT Twp. BOS meeting statement, A- 2 – Letter from K. O’Reilly, A - 3 
letter from F. Giansullo.  
 
The Public Hearing was opened up to the Board of Supervisors for questions. S. Disidore asked the 
applicant to describe the renovations that were done and what that entailed.  S. Sanczel explained 
kitchen and bathroom were already there, they put a nicer kitchen, new appliances, new bathroom, 
added a shower.  D. Ascani mentioned at the 7/15/25 Planning Commission meeting the applicant 
stated he renovated the old shed / building into a Victorian carriage house.   
 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
Solicitor Biggs referred to the Zoning Officer letter that requires: the applicants sate they are insured and 
must provide a copy, proof of registration and lodging taxes with Northampton County must be verified.  
The applicant was asked when the renovations were started and about permits.  S. Sanczel indicated 
renovations began in 2021 and as far as he was aware, his contractor Matthew took care of getting permits.   
He has been operating the short term lodging since Aug. 2024.  C. Cook asked if there was a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the cottage.  Exhibits A1, A2, A3 letters were submitted as evidence for the record.  
 
Frank Giansullo – 1907 Abbruzzi Ave. was sworn in.  He gave a statement that he know the prior owner 
Lou and that he used it as a summer kitchen.   
 
M. Hart, Township Manager was sworn in to testify and read the Township Zoning Officers review letter.  
8:20 p.m. – Applicant had nothing further to add.   
 
Entered into the record: Exhibit T-1 – Legal Notice of public hearing, T-2 – County Assessment Record for 
6423 Front St.,  T-3 – Zoning Officer Letter dated 4/17/25, T-4 – application, letter dated 7/11/25 
including floor plans and photos, T-5 – Letter from Twp. Engineer dated 7/14/25, T-6 – Zoning Officer 
review letter dated 7/15/25, T-7 – Continuance request dated 7/15/25, T-8 – Waiver request from 
applicant with updated maps and drawings dated 9/5/25,  T-9 – Zoning Officer 2nd review letter dated 
9/9/25, T10 – Engineer’s review letter dated 9/11/25.  

 
Solicitor Biggs opened up the floor for Public Comment.   
Testified on behalf of the applicant were Kevin Duane, Kitty Calzetti, and  Joe Pilyar.  Jackie Ascani 
testified and questioned the applicant as to the applicants Short-Term Lodging being a business.   
 
The applicant gave his closing statements referring to his letter of 11/3/25 that they be able to continue 
operating their little cottage rental.  Solicitor Biggs gave her closing statement noted that the applicant 
needed to show burden of proof that the ordinance has been met. Solicitor Biggs indicated the Board of 
Supervisors have 45 days to render a written decision.  The Public Hearing concluded at 9:05 p.m.   

 
OLD BUSINESS  
1.  Tara Mezzanote - LDWSR Expansion Project update.  Tabled. 

 
2.  Fire Co. request for purchase of Rock Proof Rescue Boat. G. Russo was present. This was tabled 
from 10/20 to allow George and Megan to get all the financing numbers together from Community 
Leasing and Fidelity Bank.  Megan provided several financing options from Community Leasing.  
Chief Russo is requesting the approval from the Board to put a $2500 deposit down to order, 
estimated time of completion is approximately 1 year.  MOTION by M. DeBerardinis, second by        
J. Mauser to approve the request to purchase the Rock Proof Rescue Boat and allow the $2,500 
deposit contingent on M. Hart and G. Russo find the best possible financing options.  Vote: 5-0.   
 
3.  Board of Supervisors to authorize and approve Resolution R2025-21.  
Megan explained the Board amended the original resolution (R2025-19) however DCED 
requested the contingency amount be included in the total amount of the grant and full program 
name be listed.  MOTION by M. DeBerardinis, second by D. Ascani to approve Resolution 2025-
21.  Vote: 5-0.   
 
 
 
            Pg. 2 

 
 



 

 

 
 
4.  Draft 2026 Budget – Township Manager. M. Hart reviewed the final Draft of the budget with 
the BOS. Some changes were she increase the LSA Northampton and Monroe County to include 
the Fire Company Grants, this is shown under expenses.  C. Cook asked about 413.311 – Code 
Enforcement / Property Maintenance.  Megan indicated there is $20,800.00 set aside for this.  
The list was previously compiled for enforcement, then Matt left from Barry Isett office, there 
was nobody available for the extra hours. Anthony indicated he will have somebody available in 
January for the 5 additional hours a week.  D. Ascani asked if this is a lower pay for Code 
Enforcement / Property Maintenance.  Megan indicated the hourly rate is the same at $80.00 
per hour. Public Comment by C. Buehler – Catherine asked where the $25,000 from Gravel Hill 
Enterprises in in the budget. That money can be used for road maintenance and tipping fees.  
Catherine noted you can also use street light expenses out of liquid fuels.  M. Hart indicated the 
budget is balanced with no tax increase.  MOTION by S. Disidore, second by M. DeBerardinis to 
advertise the 2026 draft budget with total expenses in the amount of $2,251.715.00, a balanced 
budget with no tax increase.  Vote: 5-0.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1.  Review and approval of revised layout of the tax bills to ensure the mailing address field 
meets current USPS requirements. Megan submitted Berk-One with recommendation (option 1) 
and samples. The current Tax Collector Marinelli supports the changes. MOTION by                            
M. DeBerardinis, second by C. Cook to approve option 1.  Vote: 5-0.   

2.  Consideration of and approval to purchase new mower - John Deere Z97OR Z Trak in the 
amount of $16,012.44.  The quote submitted is costars pricing from Hill Top Sales and Service.     
D. Ascani asked what will do with the old one.  Mark Hess indicated the current mower is 13 years 
old and has 1500 hours, it can’t keep up.  Dave asked Megan if a percentage of the money to pay 

for the mower can come from OS account. Megan indicated she has not answer yet on that.  
MOTION by M. DeBerardinis, second by D. Ascani to approve purchase of the John Deere Z97OR 
Z Trak in the amount of $16,012.44 from Hill Top Sales and Service, co-star pricing.  Vote: 5-0.  

CORRESPONDENCE - All Correspondence is located in the Township office. 

APPROVAL OF THE BILLS - Megan indicated two bills were added in the amount of $19.80 for 
delinquent streetlights.  The large payment to Nansteel in the amount of $96,308.84 will be a 
grant reimbursement.  MOTION by M. DeBerardinis, second by D. Ascani to pay the bills in the 
amount of $133,553.78.  Vote: 5-0.   

REPORTS 
Township Solicitor Report - K. Bigg-Sebia - No report. 
 
Township Engineer Report – C. Briglia reported the walking trails are coming along nicely.   
 
Chairman’s Report – M. DeBerardinis thanked Megan and Melissa for working with Penn DOT 
to get the bus stop ahead sign approved.   
 
Board Members Reports  
J. Mauser – John would like to do the trail walk on 12/12 or 12/16 and asked permission for 
Megan to purchase the mapping program, it’s a nominal purchase. John asked that Megan 
explore a few different mapping programs and review the different options with John via email.   
 
 
            

Pg. 3 



 

 

 
 
 
C. Cook - No report. 
 
S. Disidore - No report.  
 
Township Manager Report - No further comments.   
 
Asst. Manager / Secretary Report  - Written report submitted. No further comments.  
 
Zoning Officer Report – Written report submitted.   
 
Road Department Report - Written report submitted. D. Ascani noted he’s glad the gate is 
locked now up at the garage.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None.  

ADJOURNMENT – The Board of Supervisors meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m.  

   Respectfully submitted,  
 Melissa Mastrogiovanni, Township Secretary / Planning Administrator 
 Lower Mount Bethel Township 

   

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             

       Pg. 4 


